
 
 

 
 
 

OPEN MEETING 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION OF LAGUNA WOODS 

A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 
 

Tuesday, April 3, 2018 - 9:30 A.M.  
 Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room 24351 El Toro Road 

 
 

NOTICE AND AGENDA  
 
 
1. Call Meeting to Order / Establish Quorum—Thomas Sirkel, President  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Milliman 

 
3. Acknowledge Media 
 
4. Approval of Agenda 

 
5. Approval of Minutes of Meeting 

(a) March 6, 2018 – Regular Open Session Meeting 
 

6. Report of Chair 
 

7. Update from VMS – Director Bender 
   
8. CEO Report 

 
9. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker)  - At this time the Speakers may 

address the Board of Directors regarding items not on the agenda and within the 
jurisdiction of the Board of Directors of the Golden Rain Foundation. There is a 
maximum time limit of three minutes per speaker and a speaker may only address the 
Board once during this period.  The Board reserves the right to limit the total amount 
of time allotted for the Open Forum. 

 
10. Responses to Open Forum Speakers  

 
11. Consent Calendar - All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered 

routine and will be enacted by the Board by one motion in the form listed below.  In the 
event that an item is removed from the Consent Calendar by members of the Board, 
such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and action by the Board. 
 
 



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods  April 3, 2018  
Regular Open Meeting of the Board of Directors  
Page 2 
 
12. Unfinished Business  

 
(a) Entertain a Motion to Approve Relocation of Summer Kids Swim Program  
 (30-day notification to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied) 
 

(b) Entertain a Motion to Approve a Resolution for Care Services for Equestrian 
Center Boarders (30-day notification to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been 
satisfied) 

 
13. New Business 

 
(a)  Entertain a Motion to Introduce Redevelopment of Existing Paddle Tennis/ 

Pickleball Courts at Gate 12 (April Initial Notification – must postpone 30-days 
to comply with Civil Code §4360) 

 
(b) Entertain a Motion to Approve the Designation of Western Bluebird Club (WB 

Club) of Laguna Woods Village to Maintain all Bluebird Boxes within GRF 
Common Area  

 
14. Committee Reports    

 
(a) Report of the Finance Committee/Financial Reports – Director Phelps. Next 

meeting April 18, 2018, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room. 
 

(b) Report of the Community Activities Committee – Director Perak. Next meeting 
May 10, 2018, at 2:00 p.m. in the Board Room.  

 
(c) Report of the Maintenance & Construction Committee – Director Matson. Next 

meeting April 11, 2018, 9:30 a.m. in the Board Room. 
 
 Report of the Performing Arts Center (PAC) Renovation Ad Hoc Committee 

- Director Perak.  Next meeting TBA  
 
(d) Report of the Media & Communications Committee – Director Milliman. Next 

meeting April 16, 2018, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room.  Thrive Meeting April 
18, 2018, at 9:30 am in the Cypress Room 
 

(e) Report of the Mobility & Vehicles Committee – Director Troutman.  Next 
meeting April 4, 2018, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room. 

 
(f) Report of the Security & Community Access Committee – Director Sabol 

Soule.  Next meeting April  26, 2018, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room 
 

 Report of the Traffic Hearings – Director Gros.  Next meeting April 18, 2018, 
9:00 a.m. in the Board Room & 1:00 p.m. in the Cypress Room. 
 



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods  April 3, 2018  
Regular Open Meeting of the Board of Directors  
Page 3 
 

 Report of the Disaster Preparedness Task Force- Director Troutman.  Next 
meeting April 24, 2018, 9:30 a.m. in the Cypress Room. 

   
15. Future Agenda Items - All matters listed under Future Agenda Items are Resolutions 

on 30-day public review or items for a future Board Meeting.  No action will be taken 
by the Board on these agenda items at this meeting.  The Board will take action on 
these items at a future Board Meeting.   
   
(a)  Entertain a Motion to Approve a Resolution for Amendments to the Golf Cart 

Policies and Procedures (MARCH Initial Notification-must postpone to May (30-
Days) to comply with Civil Code §4360) 

 
(b) Entertain a Motion to Approve a Resolution Ratifying EV Charge Station Fees 

(MARCH Initial Notification-must postpone to May (30-Days) to comply with 
Civil Code §4360) 

 
(c) Entertain a Motion to Approve a Resolution for Electronic Payment Policy 

(MARCH Initial Notification-must postpone to May (30-Days) to comply with Civil 
Code §4360) 

 
(d) Entertain a Motion to Approve the Design and Creation of a Decorative Art Wall 

at Clubhouse 4 
 
(e) Entertain a Motion to Approve Policies for Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) 

to be Reviewed by Corporate Members; and Procedures for Corporate 
Members Meetings 

 
16. Directors’ Comments  
 
17. Recess - At this time, the Meeting will recess for lunch and reconvene to Executive 

Session to discuss the following matters per California Civil Code §4935.  
 
Closed Executive Session Agenda 

Approval of Agenda  
Approval of Minutes 
(a) March 6, 2018 – Regular Executive Session 
(b) March 22, 2018 – Special Executive Session 
Discuss and Consider Member Disciplinary Matters 
Discuss and Consider Personnel Matters 
Discuss and Consider Contractual Matters 
Discuss and Consider Litigation Matters 
Discuss Litigation Report Summary 
 

18.  Adjournment 



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 1 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 2 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 3 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 4 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 5 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 6 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 7 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 8 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 9 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 10 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 11 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 12 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 13 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 14 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 15 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 16 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 17 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 18 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 19 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 20 of 21



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 21 of 21



this page intentionally left blank



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
DATE: April 3, 2018 

FOR:  Community Activities Committee 

SUBJECT: Relocation of Summer Kids Swim  
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the relocation of the kid’s swim pool from Clubhouse 2 to Clubhouse 6 during the 
summer pool hours of operation, May 26 to October 1.   
 
BACKGROUND  

Clubhouse 2 pool is the designated kids pool and offers extended kids swim hours in the 
summer.  The pool is shared by kids, lap swimmers and recreational adult swimmers; creating 
a densely populated swimming environment which can be hazardous to some older swimmers.   
 
The pool at Clubhouse 6 is a summer pool, operating from noon to 6 p.m. seven days per 
week from Memorial Day weekend to the first Sunday in October. Based on utilization reports 
(Attachment 1), the pool is underutilized yielding very few swimmers.  Staff believes this is due 
to the pool being an oversized back yard style pool with no option of lap swimming or other 
type of water activities. 
 
DISCUSSION    

Staff analyzed and compared the utilization rates of both pools. Pool 2 averages 10 swimmers 
per hour from noon to 4 p.m. while Pool 6 averages 3.5 swimmers per day during the summer. 
In addition, staff has received numerous complaints from resident swimmers that Pool 2 is not 
a safe swimming environment while kids are there.  Residents enjoy Pool 2 for its openness, 
pool deck space, lap/recreational swimming and locker room amenities.  
 
The design and layout of Pool 6 is more conducive to kids swim due to its size, shape, and 
pool deck layout (Attachment 2). Surrounding neighbors will be minimally impacted by noise 
and traffic due to the limited amount of hours kids can swim, noon to 4p.m. daily; which is also 
a low facility usage in the clubhouse.  
 
By relocating the summer kid’s pool to Pool 6, staff can customize fun and creative programs 
that engage both grandparents and grandchildren together; classes such as reading programs, 
arts, games, and crafts.    
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

None.  
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 1 of 3



Golden Rain Foundation Board of Directors 
Recreation Division Policy
April 3, 2018 
Page 2 

Prepared By: 
Reviewed By: 

Committee:  

Brian Gruner, Recreation & Special Events Director
Brad Hudson, CEO  

Community Activities Committee 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Resolution  

Agenda Item # 12a
Page 2 of 3



RESOLUTION 90-18-XX 

Relocation of Summer Kid’s Swim 

WHEREAS, Clubhouse 2 pool is the designated kids pool and offers extended kids 
swim hours in the summer; 

WHEREAS, Clubhouse 2 pool is shared by kids, lap swimmers and recreational adult 
swimmers, creating a densely populated swimming environment which can be 
hazardous to all swimmers; and, 

WHEREAS, Clubhouse 6 pool is a summer pool, operating from noon to 6 p.m. seven 
days per week allowing kids swim hours from noon to 4 p.m. seven days a week from 
Memorial Day weekend to the first Sunday in October; based on utilization reports, the 
pool is underutilized yielding very few swimmers. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, April 3, 2018, that the Board of Directors of 
this Corporation hereby adopts the relocation of the Summer Kid's Swim from 
Clubhouse 2 to Clubhouse 6 during the summer pool hours of operation, May 26 to 
October 1; and, 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution. 

FEBRUARY Initial Notification 
30-day notification to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied. 

Agenda Item # 12a
Page 3 of 3



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: April 3, 2018 
FOR:  Community Activities Committee 
SUBJECT: Care Services for Equestrian Center Boarders 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve new horse care service program to boarders who are sick or out of town.   

BACKGROUND 
Boarders requested staff to offer a horse care program for their horses when they are sick or out 
of town for a short period of time if there is no one else available.  The services requested are:  

1. Turnout service
2. Basic grooming
3. Feeding pre-prepared supplements
4. Hot walking
5. Extra stall cleaning
6. Access to Banamine Paste in colic emergencies.

DISCUSSION 
The new care program would be performed by VMS Staff, approximately 45 minutes per day, 
per horse.   

20 Minutes - Turnout, grooming, and administering prepared supplements  
10 Minutes - Hot walking, during which time Staff is performing other duties  
15 Minutes - Extra stall cleaning  

All services are to be performed by the Equestrian Supervisor or Stable Assistant between 7 
a.m. and 4 p.m.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The recommended cost of the service is $35 per day, which will cover costs.   

Prepared By:  

Reviewed By: 

Attachment:  

Brian Gruner, Recreation & Special Events Director 

Brad Hudson, CEO 

Resolution 

Agenda Item # 12b
Page 1 of 2



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 90-18-XX 

Care Services for Equestrian Center 
Boarders 

WHEREAS, the GRF Equestrian Facility includes 27 stalls that have been made 
available to boarders to keep their personally owned horse, with boarders responsible 
for rental and feed costs; 

WHEREAS, boarders requested staff to offer a horse care program for their horses 
when they are sick or out of town for a short period of time if there is no one else 
available; and, 

WHEREAS, a new care program would be performed by VMS Staff, approximately 45 
minutes per day, per horse to boarders who are sick or out of town; and, all services 
are to be performed by the Equestrian Supervisor or Stable Assistant between 7 a.m. 
and 4 p.m. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, April 3, 2018, that the Board of Directors 
of this Corporation hereby adopts a new horse care service program to boarders who 
are sick or out of town for $35 per day to cover costs, to be charged to the boarder; 
and, 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution. 

FEBRUARY Initial Notification 
30-day notification to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied. 

Agenda Item # 12b
Page 2 of 2



this page intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

Golden Rain Foundation 
Finance Committee Meeting  
February 21, 2018 

 
 

Pickleball Courts 
 
ENDORSEMENT 
Diane Phelps, Treasurer, provided a status update for the Paddle/Pickleball Court 
project. 
 
By consensus, the Committee agreed that original funding of $600,000 approved 
September 2, 2014 and supplemental funding of $250,000 approved December 5, 2017 
will be sufficient to cover the proposed project costs and potential contingencies. 

 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 1 of 10



Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 2 of 10



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: April 3, 2018 

FOR:  Community Activities Committee 

SUBJECT: Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Courts at Gate 12 

RECOMMENDATION 

Review report and provide a recommendation to the GRF Board for the redevelopment of the 
existing Paddle Tennis/Pickleball Courts at Gate 12, including a post tension concrete slab 
over the existing concrete slab and reconfigure the existing four courts to accommodate seven 
combined pickleball and paddle tennis courts. 

BACKGROUND 

Constructing pickleball courts has been a topic of discussion at Committee and Board 
meetings for many years dating back to 2003, at which time the existing tennis courts at Gate 
12 were converted into four paddle tennis courts.  

On June 23, 2014 the GRF Board approved the 2015 Capital Plan which included funding to 
relocate and expand the paddle tennis courts with an appropriation of $600,000, funded from 
the Facilities Fund.  

On July 18, 2016 at the GRF M&C Committee meeting, staff provided an update on the paddle 
tennis and pickleball courts and responded to questions from the Committee. Discussion 
ensued regarding security, parking requirements, noise restrictions, and construction designs 
for phase 1 and phase 2 inside Gate 16 at the new Parcel 3 location. 

On August 10, 2016, staff received a geotechnical report prepared by LGC with soils 
recommendations for the new court site located. 

On August 15, 2016 at the GRF M&C Committee meeting, staff provided an update on the 
paddle tennis and pickleball courts and responded to questions from the Committee. 
Discussion ensued regarding a feasibility study, court size and a decibel sound study.  Staff 
informed the Committee the plan would have three phases. A feasibility study will be 
conducted in phase 1, the conceptual design will be phase 2, and bidding and construction will 
be phase 3. 

At the September 30, 2016 M&C Committee meeting, staff provided an update on the 
pickleball site feasibility study and answered questions from the Committee.  Discussion 
ensued regarding various issues such as parking areas, restroom location, lighting, fencing 
entrances, net height and the width of the road requirement for the site at Parcel 3. 

At the November 21, 2016 M&C Committee meeting, the additional costs were discussed and 
the requirements for City of Laguna Woods permits. Discussion ensued regarding the use of 
$20,000 from the phase 1 budget to have a study regarding the improvements of the existing 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 3 of 10



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Courts at Gate 12 
April 3, 2018 
Page 2 

site for expansion of the pickleball courts. By consensus, staff was directed to order a study of 
the existing site, using only $20,000 from the phase 1 budget and to bring this information back 
to a future open session Committee meeting.  

At the April 4, 2017 GRF Board meeting staff was directed to proceed with the preparation of 
construction documents for the maximum number of courts and fencing that could be 
constructed on Parcel 3, with a budget not to exceed $500,000.  Staff worked with the design 
consultant to produce a site development plan for submission to the city. .  The city returned 
the plans with comments for revisions. On August 23, 2017 a noise study was submitted for 
review and approval, and was completed on September 19, 2017.  

On August 25, 2017 staff was directed to prepare a schedule for the construction of the 
pickleball courts project. The schedule was predicated on advertising the project for 
construction ahead of final city approval of the Site Development Plans. Staff began the 
construction bid solicitation process utilizing the preliminary site development drawings to lock 
in a construction contract.  Staff directed the design consultant to begin the preparation of 
construction documents..  

On September 6, 2017, after several more plan revisions, drawings were resubmitted to the 
city, and an ADA path of travel was removed from the submittal package, per direction from 
the city. On September 8, 2017 the city released the first round of comments on the Water 
Quality Management Plan for corrections.   

At the November 7, 2017 GRF Board meeting, a motion was entertained and approved to 
award a contract to B. Foster Construction to construct six pickleball courts at Parcel 3 in the 
amount of $498,955, to be funded from the Facilities Fund.   

On December 5, 2017 GRF rescinded the contract with B. Foster for construction of six courts. 
Staff was directed to develop a plan to construct seven courts at the existing site.  In addition, 
staff met with the paddle tennis and pickleball club representatives and an agreement to share 
the courts was reached. 

On February 21, 2018, by consensus, the Finance Committee agreed that original funding of 
$600,000 approved September 2, 2014 and supplemental funding of $250,000 approved 
December 5, 2017 is sufficient to cover the proposed project costs and potential contingencies. 

DISCUSSION 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 4 of 10

Multiple locations and concepts have been studied for the creation of an expanded pickleball 
facility. Each option reviewed to date has required additional land use or new locations utilizing



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Courts at Gate 12 
March 8, 2018 
Page 3 

other parcels of land within the community. This new concept to construct a post tension 
concrete slab over the existing slab provides a lower fiscal impact to the community as well as 
better utilization of available land resources. 

The current paddle tennis and pickleball location at Gate 12 has been inspected by staff and a 
licensed geologist. The site is well drained, is stable with no visible signs of differential 
expansion, and it is suitable for its current use. There are visible cracks on the surface of the 
existing courts, which are primarily the projection of the control joints on the existing reinforced 
concrete slab. However, the native soil below the slab is stable with no visible signs of 
expansion.  

On February 14, 2018, Staff presented a new concept, and presented it to M and C, who 
unanimously supported the project (ATT – 1).  . This new concept converts the existing four 
paddle tennis / pickleball courts at Gate 12 to seven combined pickleball and paddle tennis 
courts including a gathering area for players.  The existing interior fencing would be removed 
and a new post-tensioned concrete slab would be installed over the existing concrete court 
surfaces to provide a flat playing surface that does not require control joints which would cause 
the surface of the courts to crack. The courts would be striped and new nets and internal 
fences installed to separate the courts and provide a gathering area.   

Additionally, as an alternate option, staff has included estimated pricing to install court lighting 
for evening play. A budget estimate for these items has been included as ATT -2.  The lighting 
element will be included as a bid alternate to the construction documents to allow the 
committee to decide whether lighting improvements should be included in the project once the 
pricing information is received from contractors. Prior to implementing site improvements, staff 
will work with the city to obtain the appropriate project entitlements, at which time, the city may 
impose additional conditions for approval that have not been captured in this proposed scope 
of work.   

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

On September 2, 2014 the GRF Board approved funding for paddle tennis courts with an 
appropriation in the amount of $600,000, from which a current balance remains of $499,310. 

The estimated preliminary cost for the proposed court improvements without lighting is 
$285,000.  The estimated preliminary cost to add court lighting is an additional $211,000. 

Prepared By: 

Reviewed By: 

Brian Gruner, Recreation and Special Events Director 

Brad Hudson, CEO 

ATTACHMENTS: 

ATT 1 – Gate 12 Proposed Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Concept Drawing
ATT 2 – Gate 12 Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Preliminary Budget Estimate 
ATT 3 -- Resolution   

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 5 of 10



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 6 of 10



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Courts at Gate 12 
April 3, 2018 
Page 4 

Attachment 1 – Gate 12 Proposed Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Concept Drawing 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 7 of 10



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Courts at Gate 12 
April 3, 2018 
Page 5 

Attachment 2 - Gate 12 Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Preliminary Budget Estimate 

Gate 12 Paddle/Pickleball Courts 

Estimated Preliminary Cost Breakdown 

Description   Base    Alternate   Prelim Est. 

Consulting Fees   $                ‐    

Entitlement Fees   $        10,000    $        10,000 

 $                ‐    

Lighting Infrastructure $        55,000    $        55,000 

Court Lighting $      156,000    $      156,000 

Engineering   $          5,000    $          5,000  

AG Base   $        10,000    $        10,000 

Post Tension Slab   $      145,000    $      145,000 

Perimeter Fence Modification   $          5,000    $          5,000  

Interior Fencing and Gates   $        40,000    $        40,000 

Court Coating   $        30,000    $        30,000 

Court Netting and Striping   $        40,000    $        40,000 

 $                ‐    

 $      285,000    $      211,000    $      496,000 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 8 of 10



RESOLUTION 90-18-XX 

Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Courts at 
Gate 12 

WHEREAS, the constructing of Pickleball courts has been a topic of discussion at 
Committee and Board meetings for many years dating back to 2003, at which time the 
existing tennis courts at Gate 12 were converted into four paddle tennis courts; and,  

WHEREAS, on June 23, 2014 the GRF Board approved the 2015 Capital Plan which 
included funding to relocate and expand the paddle tennis courts with an appropriation 
of $600,000, funded from the Facilities Fund; and,  

WHEREAS, on July 18, 2016 at the GRF M&C Committee meeting, staff provided an 
update on the paddle tennis and pickleball courts and responded to questions from the 
Committee. Discussion ensued regarding security, parking requirements, noise 
restrictions, and construction designs for phase 1 and phase 2 inside Gate 16 at the 
new Parcel 3 location; and, 

WHEREAS, on August 10, 2016, staff received a geotechnical report prepared by LGC 
with soils recommendations for the new court site located; and, 

WHEREAS, on August 15, 2016 at the GRF M&C Committee meeting, staff provided 
an update on the paddle tennis and pickleball courts and responded to questions from 
the Committee. Discussion ensued regarding a feasibility study, court size and a 
decibel sound study.  Staff informed the Committee the plan would have three phases. 
A feasibility study will be conducted in phase 1, the conceptual design will be phase 2, 
and bidding and construction will be phase 3; and, 

WHEREAS, at the September 30, 2016 M&C Committee meeting, staff provided an 
update on the pickleball site feasibility study and answered questions from the 
Committee.  Discussion ensued regarding various issues such as parking areas, 
restroom location, lighting, fencing entrances, net height and the width of the road 
requirement for the site at Parcel 3; and, 

WHEREAS, at the November 21, 2016 M&C Committee meeting, the additional costs 
were discussed and the requirements for City of Laguna Woods permits. Discussion 
ensued regarding the use of $20,000 from the phase 1 budget to have a study 
regarding the improvements of the existing site for expansion of the pickleball courts. 
By consensus, staff was directed to order a study of the existing site, using only 
$20,000 from the phase 1 budget and to bring this information back to a future open 
session Committee meeting; and, 

WHEREAS, at the April 4, 2017 GRF Board meeting staff was directed to proceed with 
the preparation of construction documents for the maximum number of courts and 
fencing that could be constructed on Parcel 3, with a budget not to exceed $500,000. 
Staff worked with the design consultant to produce a site development plan for 
submission to the city. .  The city returned the plans with comments for revisions. On 
August 23, 2017 a noise study was submitted for review and approval, and was 
completed on September 19, 2017; and,  

     Attachment 3

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 9 of 10



APRIL Initial Notification 
Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and 
seconded to accept the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the resolution reads to the 
satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then recommends that a Board Member postpones the resolution to the 
next available Board Meeting no less than 30‐days from the postponement to comply with Civil Code 
§4360

GRF Resolution 90-18-xx 
 Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Courts at Gate 12 
 Page 2 

WHEREAS, on August 25, 2017 staff was directed to prepare a schedule for the 
construction of the pickleball courts project. The schedule was predicated on 
advertising the project for construction ahead of final city approval of the Site 
Development Plans. Staff began the construction bid solicitation process utilizing the 
preliminary site development drawings to lock in a construction contract.  Staff directed 
the design consultant to begin the preparation of construction documents; and,  

WHEREAS, on September 6, 2017, after several more plan revisions, drawings were 
resubmitted to the city, and an ADA path of travel was removed from the submittal 
package, per direction from the city. On September 8, 2017 the city released the first 
round of comments on the Water Quality Management Plan for corrections; and,   

WHEREAS, at the November 7, 2017 GRF Board meeting, a motion was entertained 
and approved to award a contract to B. Foster Construction to construct six pickleball 
courts at Parcel 3 in the amount of $498,955, to be funded from the Facilities Fund; 
and,   

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2017 GRF rescinded the contract with B. Foster for 
construction of six courts.  Staff was directed to develop a plan to construct seven 
courts at the existing site.  In addition, staff met with the paddle tennis and pickleball 
club representatives and an agreement to share the courts was reached; and, 

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2018, by consensus, the Finance Committee agreed that 
original funding of $600,000 approved September 2, 2014 and supplemental funding of 
$250,000 approved December 5, 2017 is sufficient to cover the proposed project costs 
and potential contingencies. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, April 3, 2018, that the Board of Directors 
of this Corporation hereby introduces the redevelopment of the existing 
Paddle Tennis/Pickleball Courts at Gate 12; and, 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution. 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 10 of 10



Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 1 of 6



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 2 of 6



 

 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
DATE: April 3, 2018 

FOR:  Community Activities Committee 

SUBJECT: Western Bluebird Box Replacement 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends designation of Western Bluebird Club (WB Club) of Laguna Woods Village 
to be the sole club to maintain all Bluebird boxes within Golden Rain Foundation common 
area.  
 
BACKGROUND  

In many areas, the number of Bluebirds has decreased alarmingly. The decline of the 
Bluebird's population is contributed to loss of their habitats and increased competition for 
nesting sites.  
 
The WB Club has been in existence since May of 2017, and has 20 members. Within Laguna 
Woods Village the WB Club estimates approximately 11,000 bird boxes were erected over the 
past 33 years with most being left unattended and inhabited by unwanted classes. The 
unattended boxes have been inhabited by insects and various invasive species which caused 
the nest boxes to be unwelcoming for Bluebirds.  
 
Many of the nest boxes have damaged the limbs of the trees as growth around the wire 
caused strangulation. If unattended, the restriction will keep sap from flowing through the tree, 
eventually killing all growth above the constricted part. 
 
The WB Club is in the process of removing deteriorated nest boxes and replacing with suitable 
Bluebird houses. The club estimates they have removed approximately 615 boxes from GRF 
grounds and placed 75 new bird boxes.  
 
DISCUSSION  

The WB Club is requesting permission to maintain bird boxes within the common area.  Village 
Risk Management Staff will confirm sufficient insurance coverage. 
 
 
 
Prepared By:  Jennifer Murphy, Senior Recreation Supervisor    
Reviewed By:  Brian Gruner, Recreation & Special Events Director 

 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Resolution 
  

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 3 of 6



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 4 of 6



RESOLUTION 90-18-XX 

Bluebird Box Replacement 

WHEREAS, approximately 1100 bird boxes were erected and left unattended and are 
inhabited by insects and various invasive species which cause the nest boxes to be 
unwelcoming for Bluebirds; 

WHEREAS, many of the boxes have damaged the limbs of the trees as growth around 
the wire caused strangulation and if left unattended will restrict all growth above the 
constricted part; and, 

WHEREAS, the Western Bluebird Club of Laguna Woods Village is currently in the 
process of removing deteriorated nest boxes and replacing with suitable Bluebird 
houses. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, April 3, 2018, that the Board of Directors of 
this Corporation hereby designates the Western Bluebird Club of Laguna Woods 
Village to be the sole club to maintain all Bluebird boxes within Golden Rain 
Foundation common area; and, 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution. 

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 5 of 6



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 6 of 6



Financial Report 
As of February 28, 2018 

INCOME STATEMENT ACTUAL 
(in Thousands) 

TOTAL REVENUE $6,917 

TOTAL EXPENSE ($6,316) 

Revenue over Expense $601 

Slide 1 

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 1 of 6



Financial Report 
As of February 28, 2018 

FUNDS INCOME STATEMENT OPERATING FUNDS TOTAL 
(in Thousands) 

Assessment Revenue $4,549 $509 $5,058 

Non-assessment Revenue $1,460 $399 $1,859 

Total Revenue $6,009 $908 $6,917 

Total Expense $6,305 $11 $6,316 

Net Revenue/(Expense) (296) $897 $601 

w/o Depreciation $498 

Slide 2 

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 2 of 6



Financial Report 
As of February 28, 2018 

Through February, GRF was better than  
budget by $38K primarily due to:  

• Interest Income – favorable variance due to higher rates of return on higher 
investment balances. 

• Materials and Supplies –  favorable variance due to timing of budget 
distribution for materials and supplies; some planned purchases to occur 
later in the year. 

• Utilities – favorable variance due to timing of vendor invoices. 
• Professional Fees – favorable variance due to timing of budget distribution of 

consulting fees, audit & tax fees and payroll system fees. 

Some offsetting favorable variances included: 
• Trust Facilities Fees – unfavorable variance due to transitional period of fee 

changes, increasing from $2,500 to $5,000 for new escrows opening after 
January 1.  Receipts in Q1 will primarily reflect prior year escrows closing at 
the lower fee amount. 

 
Slide 3 

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 3 of 6



Financial Report 
As of February 28, 2018 

Total Non Assessment Revenues $1,858,698 

Slide 4 

40% Broadband Services

17% Trust Facilities Fees

16% Golf Operations

9% Miscellaneous Revenue

9% Clubhouse Rentals and Event Fees

4% Interest Income

2% Merchandise Sales

2% Class Fees

1% Rentals

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 4 of 6



Financial Report 
As of February 28, 2018 

Slide 5 

Total Expenses $6,315,564 

60% Employee Compensation & Related

13% Depreciation and Amortization

12% Cable/Franchise/Copyright

5% Insurance, Professional & Legal Fees

4% Outside Svcs & Other Oper Expenses

4% Material and Supplies

2% Miscellaneous Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 5 of 6



Financial Report 
As of February 28, 2018 

ENDING 
BALANCES 

WORK IN 
PROGRESS 

REMAINING 
APPROPRIATIONS 

UNENCUMBERED 
BALANCES 

Equipment $8,910 $2,423 $5,005 $1,482 

Facilities 16,633 3,031 8,982 4,620 

Contingency 794 35 69 690 

Trust Facilities Fee 10,798 0 0 10,798 

TOTAL $37,135 $5,489 $14,056 $17,590 

Slide 6 

FUND BALANCES (in Thousands) 

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 6 of 6



OPEN	MEETING	
 

REPORT OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION 
COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday, March 8, 2018 – 2 p.m. 

Board Room 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Beth Perak-Chair, Jules Zalon, Juanita Skillman, Janey Dorrell, Ryna 
Rothberg, Diane Phelps for JoAnn DiLorenzo, Steve Parsons, Joan 
Milliman, Leon St. Hilaire 

 
 MEMBERS ABSENT: JoAnn DiLorenzo 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: Dick Rader, Dick Palmer, Cash Achrekar 

 
STAFF PRESENT: Brian Gruner, Jennifer Murphy, Jackie Kupfert, Tom McCray, Lisa 

Toomer, Laura Cooley 
 
Call to Order 
 
Beth Perak, Chair, called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m. 
 
Acknowledgement of Media 
 
There was no press present. 
 
Approval of Agenda  
 
A motion was made, and by consensus, the agenda was approved.   
 
Approval of Committee Report for January 11, 2018 
 
A motion was made, and by consensus, the report was approved. 
 
Chair’s Remarks 
 
Chair Perak stated there are exciting things happening with Recreation in the Village.  Please pick 
up a brochure for Recreation events each month to be informed on all events and classes such as 
Stressless Meditation and the Village Bazaar.  Recreation based projects are brought to the 
Community Activities Committee, then CAC votes to move to GRF for approval, such as the 
Bluebird boxes.  The Bluebird box resolution was brought back to CAC for more information.  It is 
the responsibility of CAC to hear and discuss, then if approved, send to GRF for final approval.  The 
Community Activities Committee represents the Towers, United, Third and GRF.  The Committee is 
tasked with addressing the needs of our community. 
 
Report of the Recreation and Special Events Director 
 
Mr. Gruner reported on the sold out Pat Boone show, continued Customer Service training for staff, 
reviewing ActiveNet software program, and the update of carpet and chairs at Clubhouse 7.  Pool 4 Agenda Item # 14b 

Page 1 of 5



Report of GRF Community Activities Committee Regular Meeting 
March 8, 2018 
Page 2 
 
maintenance was lengthened due to cracks in the pool foundation and has been repaired with an 
anticipated opening late next week.  New poolside furniture is going to be purchased at Pool 1 with 
a test chair provided for residents to try. The Garden Center staff has eliminated the waiting list 
(from 400 to 0) with more garden plots available.  There will be a nice community area added at 
Garden Center 1 and the Recreation Department will be adding interns from Saddleback College to 
help at the Garden Centers.  The Lawn Bowling courts have been refurbished and new landscaping 
added.  They will open tomorrow to the public.  Tennis staff will be adding coordinated league play 
to encourage new and existing matches.  The Recreation Supervisors will be attending the CPRS 
conference next week in Long Beach and Mr. Gruner would like to invite a Committee member to 
join the team next year. 
 
Ms. Murphy updated CAC on upcoming Recreation events such as the True Willie concert at the 
Performing Arts Center on March 10. The annual Easter event at the Equestrian Center on March 
31 features a large slide, pony rides, Easter egg hunt and food for purchase.  The Easter Buffet at 
Clubhouse 5 is almost sold out.  The Village Bazaar at Clubhouse 5 will be April 7.  Inside tables are 
already sold out, but spots are still available outside. Village Games will begin on April 8 with 
registration starting on March 12 at the Fitness Centers.  A 5K will be added as a new event for 
Village Games.  New classes have been launched, such as how to write a novel and swimming with 
Jan Levingrad, with a spin cycle class coming soon. 
 
Mr. McCray stated that golf has been very busy with many events overbooking, so slots were added 
to the club events for more residents to attend.  Skills clinics have been extremely popular and the 
driving clinic next month is already booking up.  April 19, the US Golf Association is coming to host 
a Rules Changes seminar.  March 29, Cart Mart is hosting a service day with the opportunity to 
purchase as well.  Cart drivers of all backgrounds may come to get their cart serviced or shop for 
new ones.  Kris Callan is going to be instructing full-time.  Mr. McCray will be assessing staff to 
ensure that customer service levels are maintaining above standard.  A practice area is being 
designed for the driving range.  Hazard stakes and tee markers are being installed to spruce up the 
course. 
 
Mr. Gruner introduced the Events Planning Committee, Lisa Toomer, Laura Cooley, and Jennifer 
Murphy.  Ms. Murphy stated that the committee started in the winter of 2016 collaborating each 
Friday to review entertainment, event improvements, and food options.  Laura Cooley has worked in 
Laguna Woods Village for 29 years and has held many roles.  Lisa Toomer has worked in Laguna 
Woods Village since 2005 and is currently the Supervisor of Equestrian.  All parties are enjoying this 
committee very much.  The Health and Wellness Expo was on March 7 with over 300 in attendance.  
Positive feedback from residents, vendors and sponsors was received. The Events Committee is 
striving to make our events even better next year! 
 
Mr. Gruner stated the Laguna Woods Village Armed Forces Adoption Committee, 1st Marine 
Regiment has been created and they have currently been meeting to begin fundraising and 
volunteering.  The Marines will be attending some of our events upon invitation. 
 
Director Phelps asked about fundraising and monies to be subsidized. Mr. Gruner stated the 
Adoption Committee is working on fundraising. 
 
Chair Perak inquired about the Adoption Committee using clubhouses and facilities.  Mr. Gruner 
replied yes and any usage fees will be put on the agenda for each time fees need to be waived. 
 

Agenda Item # 14b 
Page 2 of 5



Report of GRF Community Activities Committee Regular Meeting 
March 8, 2018 
Page 3 
 
Director Dorrell asked the audience for volunteers.  Mr. Gruner requested any volunteers to visit the 
Recreation office in the Community Center. 
 
A motion was made to endorse the Laguna Woods Village Armed Forces Adoption Committee, 1st 
Marine Regiment. 
 
The motion carried 6-2. (Directors Phelps, Rothberg absent) 
 
Mr. Gruner introduced the THRIVE project and explained that THRIVE is a project to reach out to 
active participants with highlighting their activity.  A new logo was presented at a THRIVE 
committee meeting and was adopted.  Ms. Paulin has been added to the THRIVE project 
committee.  Mr. Gruner introduced Margot McCormack who has helped many hours at the Garden 
Centers.  Ms. McCormack has been a master gardener for over 30 years and is appreciative of all 
the improvements at the Garden Centers.  
 
Chair Perak spoke about how they have improved the THRIVE project in Laguna Woods Village.   
 
Director Skillman stated the THRIVE project is positive reinforcement only. 
 
*At this time, by consensus, the Committee took items out of order. 
 
*REPORTS 
 
 (12.a.)  Bluebird Box Replacement Report - GRF rescinded the Bluebird Box Replacement 
endorsement and resolution to be discussed at Community Activities Committee meeting. 
 
A motion was made to reconsider the Bluebird box replacement staff report. 
 
The motion carried 6-2. (Directors Skillman, Dorrell) 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
A motion was made to reinstate the original designation of Western Bluebird Club of Laguna Woods 
Village to be the sole club to maintain all Bluebird boxes within Golden Rain Foundation common 
area. 
 
The motion carried 5-3.  (Directors Skillman, Dorrell, Parsons) 
 
(12.)  Paddle Tennis and Pickleball Courts at Gate 12 Report – Mr. Gruner stated there has 
been an ongoing discussion about renovations at paddle tennis and pickleball courts and staff 
recommends an endorsement to the GRF Board for the redevelopment of the existing Paddle 
Tennis/Pickleball Courts at Gate 12. 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
A motion was made to endorse the recommendation to the GRF Board for the redevelopment of the 
existing Paddle Tennis/Pickleball Courts at Gate 12. 
 
The motion carried unanimously.   

Agenda Item # 14b 
Page 3 of 5



Report of GRF Community Activities Committee Regular Meeting 
March 8, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 
 
(10.)  Executive Officers of Clubs as Resident Members – Ms. Murphy stated the 
recommendation to reverse the Clubs/Groups/Organizations Recreation Department Policy to state 
that executive club officers must be a resident of Laguna Woods Village. 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
A motion was made to strike "member" from verbiage in number six of the policy with amendment 
that one officer must be a resident member. 
 
The motion carried unanimously.   
 
(11.)  Decorative Art Wall at Clubhouse 4 – Mr. Gruner recommended to approve the design and 
creation of a decorative art wall at Clubhouse 4, with a supplemental appropriation of $20,000 to be 
funded from the Contingency Fund.  Donations and sponsorships will be solicited to defray the cost. 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
A motion was made to approve a decorative art wall committee consisting of resident artists to work 
with Recreation staff to approve the design and creation of a decorative art wall at Clubhouse 4. 
 
The motion carried unanimously.   
 
Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
Members spoke on the Car Club Hobby shop and researching a chlorine-free pool. 
 
Director Parsons, Director Zalon, Director Phelps, Director Rothberg and Director Dorrell responded 
to the statements. 
 
CONSENT 
 
A motion was made, and by consensus, the consent calendar was approved.   
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION 
 
Civil Code §4515- Mr. Gruner stated the requirements of Civil Code 4515. A separate request form 
was created for staff to use to remain in accordance with the law and allows Laguna Woods Village 
some administrative rights. 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS 
 
2019 Club Budget Requests – Mr. Gruner stated a notice will be issued to each club for submission 
of budget requests on April 15. 
 

CONCLUDING BUSINESS Agenda Item # 14b 
Page 4 of 5



Report of GRF Community Activities Committee Regular Meeting 
March 8, 2018 
Page 5 

Committee Member Comments 

Director Skillman reported National Library week starts April 9 with special events at the Library 
including a possible author signing, VHS tapes given away for free, and a sale on paperbacks.  
Chuck Holland would like tablets in the Library for resident use and Director Skillman would like it 
added on CAC future agenda.  Director Parsons mentioned it would be a test only.  Chair Perak 
asked if this would be a Recreation Department issue.  Mr. Gruner stated the Recreation 
Department would like to have these tablets added for a trial basis.  Director Milliman stated Mr. 
Holland could supply simple directions to assist those using the tablets.   
Director Zalon stated he is continuously and pleasantly amazed at participation of residents at the 
CAC meetings. 
Chair Perak stated thank you for your delightful camaraderie in this committee and with staff. 

Date of Next Meeting 

The next regular meeting of the GRF Community Activities Committee will be held at 2 p.m. at the 
Community Center in the Board Room, on Thursday, May 10, 2018.  

Adjournment 

There being no further business, the Chair adjourned the meeting at 5:26 p.m. 

_____________________________ 
Beth Perak, Chair 

Agenda Item # 14b
Page 5 of 5

DRAFT



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 14d
Page 1 of 6



Agenda Item # 14d
Page 2 of 6



Agenda Item # 14d
Page 3 of 6



Agenda Item # 14d
Page 4 of 6



Agenda Item # 14d
Page 5 of 6



Agenda Item # 14d
Page 6 of 6

this page intentionally left blank


	5a GRF Board Minutes 2018-03-06 OPEN (final-approved).pdf
	Blank Page

	12a Staff Report Relocation of Kids Pool 2018-1-11.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	12b Staff Report Care Services for Equestrian Center Boarders 2018-1-11.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	12c Staff report Bluebird box replacement-GRF updated (2).pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	14b GRF CAC Report 2018-3-8 Open.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	12c Staff report Bluebird box replacement-GRF updated (2).pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	12c Staff report Bluebird box replacement-GRF updated (2).pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	13a Staff Report Paddle Tennis  Pickleball Courts at Gate 12 03 08 2018.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	13d Staff Report Executive Officcers of Clubs as Resident Members 2018-3-8.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	13b Staff report Bluebird box replacement-GRF updated (2).pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	13c Staff Report Executive Officcers of Clubs as Resident Members 2018-3-8.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	14a GRF Treasurer's Report 2018_2 Slides.pdf
	Financial Report�As of February 28, 2018
	Financial Report�As of February 28, 2018
	Slide Number 3
	Financial Report�As of February 28, 2018
	Financial Report�As of February 28, 2018
	Financial Report�As of February 28, 2018




